Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phane: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is heraby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, January 19, 2021 in the Board Room of
the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed iterns
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

In accordance with Sub, H.B. 404 of the 133" Genera!l Assembly, passed on November 19, 2020,
signed by the Governor of the State of Ohio on November 22, 2020 and the March 9, 2020 order
of the Governor of the State of Ohio declaring a public health emargency, this meeting will be live-
streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the
public. Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board Room. The
meeting package will be posted on RTA's website at (www riderta comv/hoard), on RTA's
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 A.M. Board of Trustees — aganda attached.

7 P
Lt S
S~ Mé&f‘f{#f’j |
lﬁldiﬂ L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



VI

VI

VI

XI.

XL,

Xt

XV,

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, January 19, 2021

9:00 a.m.

Call to order

Roalt Call

Certification regarding notice of meeting

Approval of the December 15, 2020 Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items can be phoned in using the dial

in information or submitted via form at www riderta, com/events by selecting the
meeting date;

Phone: 440-276-4600
Board Governance Committes report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
= Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
¢ Chair: Rev. Charles P. Lucas

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committes report
= Chair: Karen Gabriel Moss

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
¢ Chair; Valarie J. McCall

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
+ Board Liaison: Justin M. Bibb

Ad Hoc Committee reports
» Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Chair
¢« Ad Hoc Technology Committee - Justin M. Bibb, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
Introduction of resolutions:
A, 2021-1 = Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater

Cleveland Regional Transit Authority who retired during the fourth quarter of
2020



RTA Board of Trustees
January 18, 2021

Page 2

XV.

2021-2 — Authorizing an increase to Contract No, 2018-070 with E.L..
Robinson Engineering for Project 52N Engineering Services for the Tower
City East Portal Rehabilitation in the amount of $220,459.54 for a total
contract amount of $989 942.01 and reinstating the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer's change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget)

2021-3 -~ Authorizing Contract No. 2020-182 with Cook Paving &
Construction, Co., Inc. for Project 18.71 — GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities, in
an amount not to exceed $275,000.00 (RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2021-4 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-189 with the Aftermarket Parts
Company, LLC for the furnishing of Gemini Plastic Seat Inserts (back &
bottom-with drain holes), as specified and as required, for a period of one (1)
year in an amount not to exceed $385,078.32 (General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget)

2021-5 - Authorizing Contract No. 2021-001 with Oracle Corporation ta
provide Oracle Software Maintenance and Support Services for a period of
one year in an amount not to exceed $388,132.99 (General Fund,
Infarmation Technology Department budget)

2021-6 - Authorizing Contract No. 2021-002 with Ultramain Systems, inc. to
provide software maintenance for the Authority’s CITME Maintenance and
Materials Management Systern for a period of one year in an amount not to
exceed $373,093.80, with two annual renewals in amounts not to exceed
$386,152.09 and $399,667.41, respectively, for a total contract amount not
to exceed $1,158,913.30. (General Fund, Information Technotogy
Departrment budget)

2021-7 — Authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding with the Cuyahoga
County Board of Health for implementation of the Baby on Board Program

2021-8 — Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to
grant a permanent right-of-way and easement to the East Ohio Gas
Company (“Dominjon”) to access and maintain the measuring and regulating
station on Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 671-07-002, located
at the Hayden Garage in East Cleveland, Ohio for the price of $10,000.00

Interitm Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

A. General Fund Revenue — status as of December 21, 2020 versus 2019

B.

actuals
General Fund Revenue - status as of December 31, 2020 versus the 2020

budget



RTA Board of Trustees
January 19, 2021
Page 3

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2020, actual receipts
through January 2021

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of December 31, 2020

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as
of December 31, 2020

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through December 31,
2020

Report on investment Earnings {cash basis) as of December, 2020
Composition of thvestment Portfolio as of December 31, 2020

Banking and Financial Relationships as of Dacember 31, 2020

—T0O ™ MO O

XV|. General Manager's Report
XVH. President's Report
XVIIl. Old Business
XIX.  New Business
XX. Public comments {2 minutes) on non-agenda iteams can be phoned in using the

dial in information or submitted via form at www riderta.com/evenis by selecting
the meeting date:

Phone: 440-276-4600

XXI.  Executive Session Reguested - To consider the appointmeant, employment,
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of a public employee
or official,

XXII.  The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 16, 2021 in
the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Facebook
page {www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the public. Only
Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board Room.

XXHI.  Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:50 a.m., December 15, 2020

Present: Clough (Chair), Lucas (Vice Chair), Bibb, Byrne, Joyce, McCall, Moss, Peliot, Serrano,
Weiss

Not present: None

Also Present: Becker, Benford, Birdsong, Bitto, Burnay, Catalusci, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Davidson,
Fields, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Johnson, Jones, Lincoln, Mathes, Schipper, Young.

Mayaor Clough called the meeting to order at 9:50 a.m. The secretary called the rofl and reported that -
eight (8) board members were present. A few Board members had audio issues and joined the
meeting later. This meeting was conducted by teleconference for members of the Board in
accordance with Sub. H.B. 404 of the 133 General Assembly, passed on November 19, 2020,

signed by the Governor of the State of Ohio on Novemnber 22, 2020 and the March 9, 2020 order of
the Governor of the State of Ohio declaring a public health emergency, this meeting was live-
streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www facebook com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the
public.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usuat notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this
Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems (comments were submitted by form and phone)

1. Bruce Checefsky — Cleveland, OH - Will the bus at Lakeview Terrace remain #81, or will the
bus be a different number? Could you clarify, please?

Dr. Caver said the bus will change to the #25.

2, Justineg M. Smith — Cleveland, OH - | have not used RTA since March, 2020 because | have
heard that riders are not keeping their masks on and that RTA is not limiting capacity as
required by the State of Ohio Governors requirement that people wear masks and practice
social distancing in indoor public places. | will ride RTA again once there is mask compliance
and enforcement. if Marc's, CVS and other retail can do it why can't RTA? Non-mask
compliance on buses, rail cars and transit stations should be reported to the Cuyahoga County
Mask Compliance hot line. Photos can also be sent.

3. Chris Martin - Cleveland, OH - Today you will ratify the budget plan staff has presented to
yau. While at your retreat, you all heard a lot about listening to riders, | am uncertain whether
that message has stuck. We call on you to defund your police and reallocate the funds to
improve service, We call on you to seek more funding and implement the expanded service
redesign. We call on you to maintain direct service to Lakeview Terrace. We call on you to
heal the Healthline. We call on you to implement rear-door boarding and suspend fare
collection during the pandemic. We call on you to provide mask dispensers on board buses
and trains. You have done none of these things. Instead, you give your C-Suite a 3% raise.
Instead, you pad your reserve fund to the tune of $139.7 million. As | said last month, budgets
are moral documents. Today, you ratify this budget, this expression of your morals.




RTA Board of Trustees
December 15, 2020
Page 2 of 9

4. Jill Pappenhagen — Mayfield, OH - Free public transit, combined with increased routes
between the east and west sides of Cleveland, would increase ridership and make
employment possible for so many psople. Such policies and changes could serve as a mode!
throughout the USA.

5. Ianeisha Fair - Cieveland, OH - | am submitting a comment to express concern regarding the
proposed elimination of services for buses #81 and #38. Please do not make these changes.
Many people rely on these particular buses because the routes they offer are very convenient,
and often allow the ability to only need 1 or 2 buses depending on where you are going.
Steelyard is a very important shopping area in the Tremont and surrounding Clevetand
neighborhoods, and the 81 gives a direct route to it. The 81 is also a 24-hour bus, and losing
certain stops could cause great inconvenience for many who have to work late hours, or have
to come from farther distances across Cleveland, etc. The 38 services an area that often
already has trouble with transportation, and cutting stops would add a great inconvenience.
Transportation for RTA riders is already a hardship at times due to higher bus fare, for those
who may already have trouble with affording it. In addition, it can already take multiple buses
and fong wait times to get to places like work, etc. Accessibility of transportation is already of
great concern here in Cleveland, especially for low-income individuals. Cutting stops from
these routes would onlty add to that.

6. Tara Peppard — Lakewood, OM - | urge the board to consider not collecting fares in 2021. The
2021 budget projects only 10% of revenue from fares. RTA has a surplus in their 2020 budget
of $140 million ($139,654,092). With Cares Act funding this would be an opportunity to
increase transit access for the greater community. The disadvantaged of our community who
rely on public transportation have been disproportionately impacted by the Covid-19
pandemic. Please do your due diligence to support those who need it most during this terribly
difficult period of time.

7. Dominic Mathew — Cleveland, OH - With regards to the Redesign, has the GCRTA used any
existing data sources to map the effects of COVID? I'm thinking of the Streetlight Data platform
that ODOT has a contract with, and that tracks phone data of residents to differentiate different
mode users. Is this being used with current B&A data to estimate COVID impact on certain
neighborhoods or routes? The board packet mentioned that the Cleveland Foundation
sponsored free rides day resulted in a larger than normal footfall. In conjunction with the Fare
free ideas discussed by the board previously, is this data being compared with previous free-
ride days data? Is it possible ta estimate the effect of a fare free system on access and equity
in the county? Thank you.

8. Hope Wondowsky — Cleveland, OH - Hello, My name is Hope, and | have been a rider of RTA
since 2015. | have chosen a lifestyle without a car for environmental reasons, and | rely on
RTA for all of my transportation needs. | pride myself on knowing this transit system, and
would fike to see ridership increase, being an equalizer for Cleveland. | routinely ride the red
line, blue line, health fine, 26, 55, and 32. | grew up in NJ, and | tell all my family there that |
live in the one city in Ohio with decent Public Transit. As a matter of fact, RTA was a deciding
factor for me relocating here. That being said, [ urge the board te consider not collecting fares
in 2021, matching progressive cities throughout the country. My reasons are as follows:

The 2021 budget projects only 10% of revenue from fares - is the juice worth the squeeze?
Free Public Transit could pay for itself. The cost of collection outweighs the earnings from
fares. | work at Cleveland Public Library, and this was the same situation before we went Fine
Free. It lifts a significant burden from our patrons. RTA has a surplus in 2020 of $140 million
($139,654,092). With Cares Act funding this would be an opportunity to increase transit




RTA Board of Trustees
December 15, 2020
Page 3of 9

10.

11,

12

access for greater community recognizing people who are low-income and people of color
have been disproportionately impacted by the covid-19 pandemic.

Bob Ross — Stronasville, OH - As to the changes to Routes #38 and #81. Don't do it! This will
eliminate important links and restrict access for many elderly people, people of cotor and lower
income people. The hundreds of people in Lakeview Terrace alone would be devastated. As
emerging neighborhoods develop, public transit is important. Ohic City, Tremont and Steelyard
Commons would be adversely affected. Reconsider this...

Marina Marquez — Lakewood, OH - Dear GCRTA Board Members. Based on data shared at
the last Board Meeting, with fares only projected to make up 10% of revenue in 2021, this is
the time for GCRTA to pilot Free Public Transit and increase transportation accessibifity.
Free public transit could pay for itself. GCRTA has a surplus in 2020 of $140 million
($139,654,092) and with Cares Act funding this would be an opportunity to increase transit
access for the greater community - recognizing people who are low-income and people of
color have been disproportionately impacted by the covid-19 pandemic. As a lifetime transit
rider for 46 years, in my childhood | depended on the number 3 Superior bus line and now as
an adult and Lakewood resident | depend on the 55 Clifton line and the 26 Detroit line for
mobility. My brothers and sisters and the children and youth who live in the Corlett/Mi,
Pleasant/Union-Miles Cormmunity depend on public transit but cannot afford the fares as they
have been disproportionately impacted by the covid-19 pandemic. FREE PUBLIC TRANSIT is
symbolic to healing the divide and disparities among all Cuyshoga County residents.

Jeff Sleasman -~ Cleveland, QOH - Good morning. With passenger fares estimated to make up
only 10% of GCRTA revenue for 2021, has GCRTA considered its options to go fare-free?
Even if only a pilot project, the benefits to the community of improved service surely outweigh
the costs of foregone passenger fare. As such, one could see Jocal phitanthropic, corporate, or
government institutions partnering with GCRTA to aid in defraying the cost. Especially
institutions that buy passes in bulk, as fare-free service would reduce their expenditures.
Between partners and CARES Act funds, the financing is likely to work out. Workforce
development orgs, social service orgs, and private companies could alse monitor and collect
data on the improved outcomes for their constituents and employees.

| was a daily Healthline rider when our highly-rated BRT system lost it's proof-of-payment fare
enforcement. | withessed first hand the resulting service slowdowns, short-terrm bus crowding,
and long-term loss in ridership. One wonders to what extent the reverse circumstance might
be true: ridecship could drastically increase if service is sped up by eliminating the dwell times
for fare enforcement. In addition, RTA personnel dedicated to fare enforcement could also be
redeployed as Transit Ambassadors, further improving the customer experience.

2020 was a struggle and Greater Cleveland could use some bold ideas to help us see a light
on the horizon.

Mary Ann — Strongsville, OH - Good morning RTA. As a frequent rider of public transit { urge
RTA to consider free transit for all. in the face of economic downturns and the Covid19 crisis,
elimination of fares would help many people. People who could save the money associated
with obtaining education, medical, food shopping and employment. It is expensive toown a
car. People that don't own a car need public transit. We need to help them. | use the red line,
#52, the health line and the trolleys to get where | need to go. | am on a fixed income and even
though | get a reduced senior rate, no fare at all would be great. Federal, State, County and
City funding is available. | think that it probably costs more to collect fares than to just let
everyone ride free. It has worked in other places, In the budget you should look at fare




RTA Board of Trustees
December 15, 2020
Page 4 of 9

collection and transit police as great places to cut and supplement fares. | have rarely seen
police on the rapid or buses. | have always felt safe. | have used public transit for 60 years.
Who knows what sales tax revenue will be in 20217 A tax levy on the ballot would probably
help. Expansion of routes and frequency of buses would make people want ta vote for a levy.
And of course no fares, The time is now! The future is uncertain. Let's take a big step forward.
Merry Christmas and happy holidays to all of GCRTA and your families.

Mayor Clough asked if there were comments expressing a different view from what has been
read. He said if it is the same subject matter, the rest can be summarized. Rev. Lucas
wanted to make sure that all the comments were recognized. Ms. Birdsong said they are
reviewing free fares data wise. They will bring it back to discussion early in the 1% quarter.
Mayor Ciough thanked everyone for their comments.

13. Erin Gay Miyoshj — Cleveland Heights - The proposed 2021 budget is projecting anly 10% of
revenues from fares. At the November board meeting, Justin Bibb requested information on
the expense related to collecting fares versus the actual revenue. | echo this request. Is the
juice worth the squeeze? Pre-pandemic the majority of GCRTA riders were low-income.
During the pandemic, GCRTA has been an essential service in our community, yet the cost of
a $5 daily pass is still a barrier to serving people who need public transit. In fact, a $5 daily
pass is a barrier to me. It's more cost effective as a family of 3 to drive than take public transit.

As a taxpayer, and therefore investor in RTA, it makes me wonder if more people would be
served by RTA if fares were reduced or eliminated. RTA is ending the current year with a $140
miliion surplus. With Cares Act funding, RTA is in the financial position to expand how it is
serving our community, particutarly residents most impacted by the covid pandemic.
Eliminating the collection of fares could pay for itself. Before approving the budget, | urge you
to look closely at the current budget model. Eliminating fares could have a transformative
impact on Northeast Ohio's recovery from the pandemic. Free transit means more access to
jobs, health care, groceries, and essential services — for more people.

14, Chris Martin - Cleveland, OH — He spoke earlier. He doesn't think it's fair for Mayor Clough to
select which comments to listen to. This speaks to the strength of public opinion. Staff said
they wanted to listen to riders.

Mayor Clough added that he believes they have listened to the riders. All comments are being
recorded. There is another non-agenda comment portion at the end of the meeting. He
recognizes that the public is interested in free fares. He is not trying to efiminate comments,
but wants to recognize that they have business to conduct.

Minutes

Mayor Clough stated that the minutes from the November 17, 2020 Board Meeting had been
previously distributed and reviewed and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections.
Thera were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Committee Reparts

There were no committee reports.

Community Advisory Commitiee (CAC)

There was no CAC report.



RTA Board of Trustees
December 15, 2020

Page 5 of 9

Ad Hoc Committes Reports

There was no Ad Hoc Committee report.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

LN

Jesse Church — Security Systems Specialist, Operations
Sheila Miller — IT Engineer, IT

William Mariner - Sign Shop Leader, HR

Matthew Seegenrt — Talent Management Coordinator, HR

Promotions;

1. Alroy Gibson — Manager of Transportation, Paratransit
2. Conor Miller - ITS specialist, Operations

Mayor Clough congratulated the new hires and promaotions,

Introduction of Resalutions

A

2020-91 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-161 with Hilf International, Inc. for Project 18.87
— On-Call Inspection Services - 2020 in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a
period of twenty-four (24) months (RTA Capital and/or Development Funds, Engineering
& Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by

Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mayor Byme and approved by unanimous vote.

2020-92 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-163 with the Ruhlin Company for Project 61F -
Triskett Garage CNG infrastructure upgrades, in an amount not to exceed $6,262,000.00
(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Rev. Lucas, seconded by Mr. Bibb and approved by
unanimous vote,

2020-93 - Authoarizing Contract No. 2020-181 with CBTS, LLC for the purchase of
Network Core Upgrade Equipment and Services in an amount not to exceed $293,281,40
(RTA Development Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the adeption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrane, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous

vote,

2020-94 - Authorizing Cantract No. 2020-184 with Motarola Solutions, Inc. for the
purchase of Transit Police portable radios, dispatch consoles & body cameras for a total
contract amount not to exceed $1,334,907.00 (RTA Development Fund ($966,805.00)
and General Fund ($368.002.00), intelligent Transportation Systems Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mayor Byrne and
approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Moss said this went through committee and there was a great presentation on this
item.

2020-95 — Authorizing a Change Order to Cantract No. 2016-099 with Lamar Transit, LLC
for Transit Advertising Sales Services (Revenue Generating, amount variable based upon



RTA Board of Trusiees
December 15, 2020

Page 6 of 9

net sales), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Peflot and
approved by unanimous vote.

2020-96 - Autharizing the purchase of property insurance from various insurance
underwriters through AON Risk Services Northeast, Inc. for a period of twelve (12)
months for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,126,116.00 (General Fund, Risk
Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce,
seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote,

2020-97 - Amending Sections 460.02 and 460,03 of the Codified Rules and Reguiations
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which was moved by
Mayor Byrne, seconded by Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous vote.

2020-98 - Authorizing an interagency agreement with the Ohio Department of
Transportation for Section 3 of the Opportunity Corridor Project (RTA Development Fund,
Engineering and Project Development budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr.
Serrano, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

2020-99 - Authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into an
intergovernmental agreement with the Cleveland Metropolitan Schoot District for student
fares for the 2020-2021 school year and ratifying the issuance of tickets, the adoption of
which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. Pellot. Mr. Serrano asked to recuse
himself. The roll was called. There were eight (8) ayes and one (1) recuse from Mr.
Serrano, It passed.

2020-100 -~ Amending budget appropriations for the FY 2021 Capital Improvement Fund
budget to provide for an increase of $12,650,000, the adoption of which was moved by
Mr. Joyce, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote,

Public hearings were held on this resolution and the next two resolutions.

2020-101- Making appropriations for the current expenses and other expenditures for the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority during fiscal year 2021, the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded Mayor Byrne and approved by unanimous

vote.

2020-102— To amend the Fiscal Year 2020 revenues and appropriations for the General
Fund, as adopted in Resolution No, 2019-118 and to provide for a $5,000,000 transfer to
the Reserve Fund for Rail Car Replacement, the adoption of which was moved by Mr.
Serrano, seconded Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

Interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Dr. Caver gave the report. The unemployment rate has been dropping nationally, Statewide and
countywide, This is a better position for RTA than it was at the height of COVID, but he cautioned that

there is still

difficulty in the community. Transportation and warehousing has the largest gain

regionally. The declines are starting to happen in government, With state budgets and with other
budgets being depressed, it is likely we will lose economic activity and jobs. Ridership has continued
to be stagnant. It is an YTD total ridership reduction of 45%. Throughout the COVID time period, that
number has been 55% of pre-COVID ridership numbers. Passenger fares have been depressed
about 50% of its pre-COVID levels, Sales tax has been resilient, but there is some caution as to a
major rebound through a 2021 year. Economic analysis predict that a return to pre-COVID levels may



RTA Board of Trustees
December 15, 2020
Page 7 of 9

not come untii 2022-2023. The supplemental insurance payments for unemployment insurance have
been discontinued. That was a major component of spending through the core of the Pandemic.
We've drawn down ail of the CARES Act funding through October. It allows us to support the
Qperating budget and the leveis of service approved today for the 2021 appropriations.

Mr. Bibb thanked Ms. Birdsong for her comments about exploring scenarios with free fares. He asked
if there could be a piloting of this in 2021 maybe with the HealthLine. He wants to be creative in ways
that ridership can be increased as economic recovery takes shape. Rev. Lucas asked about the Bill
in Congress and how it affects public transit, Mr. Schipper said there is $15 billion allocated for
transit. There is a cap. We're capped at 756% of our operating expenses from 2018 when it is
combined with what we've received already. He is not sure how it draws down, Staff will be working
with the Advocacy firm and FTA, Hopefully it gets approved this week. It wilt be a similar mechanism
to the CARES Act. Rev. Lucas asked if RTA was receiving $75 million. Mike said they need to look
at RTA's National Transit Database (NTD) data from 2018 to see what that amount would be.

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer Report

Ms. Birdsong gave the presentation. RTA participated in a joint Public Transportation Virtual Rally,
which included other large and mid-size agencies such as Indianapolis, Pennsylvania, Philadelphia,
San Francisco, New York, Denver and New Orleans. Steve Bitto, Executive Director for Marketing
and Communications, represented RTA, The rally was to call for significant and immaediate emergency
federal relief via the CARES Act and any subsequent funding packages that might be passed at the
federal level to support public transit. The talking points included that RTA is in a positive state
financially for next year, largely in part due to the allocation of the previous CARES Act funding, which

totaled $112 mitlion.

As a result of that funding, the RTA has been able to maintain current levels of service up to 93%.
There have not been any layoffs of furioughs. Service vehicles and facilities have been cleaned at an
accelerated rate and PPE has been distributed to staff and customers in the thousands. There are
still subsequent funding needs. There is still $514 million of unfunded capital projects that are in need
of state of good repair updates and infrastructure work. We have requeasted that Congress and the
administration look to pass a COVID-19 bill for public transit before the end of the current session.
We are awaiting the next update. Being fiscally responsible does not equate with being flush with
cash. We need to continue to be good stewards of our financial scope. She believes that we have
done so, so we can continue with the service redesign.

We will take into consideration all of the public comments and board members interested in what free
fares would look like. To her knowledge, no public transit agency close to RTA's size has undergone
free fares. Agencies are in the same boat when it comes to evaluating what can be done to help the
community to enjoy free transit, if possible. However, anything that is proposed has to take the long
term into consideration. We do not want to put in a policy that is short lived due to the inability of RTA
to recoup on any relief packages. We need to ensure it is a permanent change that may cause

confusion or further hardship for riders.

RTA received a Healthy Worksite Silver Award for the 2" year in the row. This recognizes Ohio
employers who demonstrated commitment to employee wellness. A large part of the application was
our response to the Pandemic. There was a true commitment to wellness, safety and cleanliness.
RTA raceived an Qhio Air Quality grant for $2 million to replace six diesel buses with six compressed
natural gas {CNG) buses. The grant should cover almost 64% of the cost to replace those vehicles,
A presentation will be made to the Board on Feb. 16, 2021 and the estimate delivery date is 10
months after the Notice to Proceed. The Marketing Department decorated several trains caliing them
Holiday Trains. Customers have responded with positive feedback on social media. Patrolman



RTA Board of Trustees
December 15, 2020
Page B of 9

Cummings dress up as Holiday Santa and visited several RTA properties. She thanked the Marketing
and Operations staff. Rev. Lucas suggested one of the Paratransit vehicles be decorated next year.
The Employee Giving Campaign goal was adjusted to $40,000 because of COVID. Donations have
dropped due to the finarcial situation of our country. We are currently at 64% of that goal at $25,611.
We appreciate the giving and look forward to continued participation.

The Board of Trustees held a virtual retreat last week. TransPro facilitated the retreat. They are
assisting staff with organizing success outcomes. The Deputy General Managers and Directors did a
great job of explaining their scarecards. This is draft information. The ten-year Strategic Plan is lofty
as far as goals and objectives, so the team decided to have an interim plan to hit the goals in the
short-term. They will come back ta the Board with updates in 2021 and a roli out to the staff and
operational partners to understand the new metrics. The IT team did a great job live streaming the
meeting.

Public comments on non-agenda items

Comments were received via form and by dial in. Mayar Clough said it is a disadvantage that the
public cannot attend the meetings in person to share their comments, but all camments can be sent in
writing. But he believes that if several comments have the same subject, they should be categorized
by topic. Ifthe topics are the same, it would be better to have one spokesperson. It was brought up
by the Board whether there should be ane comment portion with the time extended or continue with
two comment perieds. Currently there is a two-minute limit. This was not discussed at the recent
retreat. He would like there to be one comment period and maybe extend the time {imit. Mr. Bibb
suggested comments be taken at committee meetings in addition to the regular Board Meeting.

1. Loh - Cleveland, OH - Today's board meeting is informative as expected. However, Mayor
Clough's view of making meeting efficient by NOT reading the public comments of the same or
similar topic LIVE is definitely NO help to GCRTA's public image, Again! Any way to let him
know riders and general public are Not sharing his point of view, Especially on how public
make public comments and what public express in their public comments??7?

The foliowing is Loh's revision of the public comment sent earlier this morning via GCRTA
website for your references:

L.oh has been asking for Fare-FREE public transit service from GCRTA, at least, since 2017
Not Only because people shoutd Not pay Twice, ie Tax And Fare, to use such an impartant
public service, But Also GCRTA will be FREE of alf the troubles and the wastes of limitad
resources with the expenditures on collecting, such as the problematic fare cards, fare boxes,
fare card vending machines, technologies, and the co$tly contracts, together with expen$ive
updates/upgrades/ Furthermore, Fare-FREE Policy definitely eliminates the unnecessary,
agonizing complications from the Misuse of GCRTA Transit Police for fare-collecting
reinforcement. More Importantly, due to COVID-19, Fare-FREE Policy will definitety enhance
alt other ongoing efforts GCRTA has been warking on to strengthen the appreciation and trust
from riders and general public, which will benefit the public transit system for the long run, ie to
help GCRTA to go for any federal, state, and even lacal transportation funding opportunities
simply because there are louder, stronger Voices from the people GCRTA serves than before!
Thanks for your time and consideration of this timely matter.

2. Jack Brancatelli — Cleveland, QH - Many of us have been concerned about people not wearing
masks on the busses, but absolutely do not want more enforcement, policing, or punishment.
Could the RTA supply masks on each vehicle to simply provide masks to people who aren't




RTA Board of Trustees
Deacember 15, 2020
Page 9 of 9

wearing one? Perhaps a mask dispenser, This would be following the lead of other cities
instituting that policy.

Executive Session Reguested

10:53 a.m. - Mayor Clough asked for a motion to go into Executive Session to consider the
appointment, empioyment, dismissal, discipline, promation, demotion, or compensation of a public
employee or official. it was moved by Rev. Lucas, seconded by Mayor Weiss, There was ten (10)
ayes and none opposed. There will not be any actian taken after the meeting.

11:14 a.m. — it was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Chief McCallf to come out of Executive
Session. There were seven (7) ayes and none opposed. Rev. lucas, Mr. Bibb and Ms. Peliot had to
leave the meeting.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 19, 2021 in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, and 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA’s Facebook page for staff and members of the public at
www.facebook.com/riderta Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board

Room.

This meeting was adjourned at 11:15 a.m.

President

Interim Secrétary-Treasurer




RESOLUTION NQ. 2021-1

EXPRESSING CONGRATULATIONS TO THE EMPLOYEES OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY WHO RETIRED DURING THE FOURTH QUARTER OF
2020

WHEREAS, the following employees retired from the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
during the fourth quarter of 2020 after nurmerous years of dedicated public service:

Name Titte Work Location
Petar Anderson Executive Director

and Chief Information Officer Main Office
Aminah Chandler Service Quality Coordinator Main Office
Mattie Coieman Money Handler Revenue
Kathiyn Gaters Operator Paratransit
Willie Grean Qperator Triskett
Gizella Gregoire Office Manager Main Office
l.eonard Hawkins Material Handler/Stock Clerk Central Bus
Henry Johnson # Operator Hayden
John Jordan Operator Hayden
Theodare Leftridge Operator Paratransit
Shawn Mallamad Associate Counsel Il Main Office
Theodore Pickett Sr. Procurernent Tearn Leader Main Office
Willis Seme Equipment Body Mechanic Central Bus
Tina Simpson-Pettigrew Supervisor Warehouse Central Bus
Debarah Srnith Executive Secretary Main Office
Scott Uhas Director of Revenue Collection Revenue
Sharon Vega Operator Triskett
Cobra K-9 Officer Transit Police

WHEREAS, these retirees faithfully gave of their skills, time and talents to provide high
guality public transportation to the community; and

WHEREAS, these retirees did much to contribute to the quality of life in Greater Clevetand by providing
much-needed public transit service and protecting our valuable environment; and

WHEREAGS, the retirees’ outstanding difigence in the performance of their jobs was of immeasurable
value to both riders and residents of Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, these retirees represent hundreds of years of invaluable public transit experience, and they
will be missed,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the sincere congratulations and gratitude of the Board of Trustees is hereby extended
io each of the above named empioyees on the occasion of their retirement from the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees offer their bast wishes to the retirees for
continued success and happiness, which they so richly deserve,

Section 3, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted; January 19, 2021

President

Altest;

interim Secretary-Treasurer



gggm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

CONTRACT:  INCREASE TO PROJECT NO. 52N ENGINEERING 2021-2

SERVICES FOR THE TOWER CITY EAST PORTAL Date:

REHABILITATION January 14, 2021
VENDOR: E.l. ROBINSON ENGINEERING Inltiator:
AMOUNT: $220,459.54 AND REINSTATEMENT OF GENERAL Engineering & Project

MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHANGE Development
ORDER AUTHORITY

ACTION REQUEST:
B Approval ] Review/Comment [ information Only {} Qther

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to increase Contract No. 2018-
070, Project No. 52N Engineering Services for the Tower City East Portal Rehabilitation,
in order to replace the portal structures south of the upper retaining wall above tracks 6,
8, and 10 and replace the wall that supports the portal above track 7. In addition, this
action will allow for the reinstatement of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's
change order authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Tower City East Portal ("East Portal") supports
portions of Huron Road and Ontario Street over the RTA Joint Territory. The portal was
constructed in the {ate 1920s concurrently with, and as part of, the Terminal Tower.
Over the years, the structure has been damaged by freeze-thaw cycles, alkali sifica
reactivity, and water intrusion.

The preliminary investigation demonstrated that the concrete repairs necessary to bring
this structure back into a state of good repair were more extensive than originally
anticipated. The findings show a need to remove additional portions of portal walls
adjacent to tracks 6, 7, 10E, and 13, as well as temporary and permanent
track/catenary/signal work beyond the base scope of work.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROQUND: On February 19, 2019, the Board of Trustees, by
Resolution No. 2019-12, authorized a contract with E L. Robinson Engineering to
perform engineering services to design a solution {o repair the East Portal going into
Tower City Station in an amount not to exceed $1,011,402.03. One change order has
included a reduction in the amount of $241,919.56, resulting in a current contract total
amount of $769,482.47. This change order was authorized by the Board of Trustees as
part of the original resolution/base contract.

Additional project scope requires that the Authority increase E.L. Robinson
Engineering’s scope of services by an amount of $220,459.54. This change order was
reviewed and recommanded for approval by the Change Order Committee. This action
also seeks reinstatement of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change
order signing authority. A Change Qrder Log is attached as a reference.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Al Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 7% DBE goal was established for this procurement in February,

2019, E.L. Robinson Engineering has agreed to maintain the established DBE
participation goal through the use of its existing DBE firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




2021-2
Staff Summary & Comments
Engineering Services for the Tower City East Portal Rehabilitation

Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This change order shall be payable from the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget including, but not limited to,
100% local funds.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Rejection of this change order would impact the Authority's ability
to complete all necessary repairs to the East Portal and bring it into a state of good
repair.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: it is recommended that this change order be accepted and
the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to
modify the contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENT: Change Qrder Log.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

-1
- 3 -
-~ /} ' ""f..:: T

o

r‘"‘

o e

L A
General Manager, Chief Exedutive Officer

(




APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE TOWER CITY EAST PORTAL REHABILITATION

PROJECT NO. 52N

Contract# 2018-070 Contractor: E.L. Robinson Engineering

Original Contract Amount $1,011,402.03 Total G.M. C.0. Authority Remaining $101,140.00

Total Change Order Amount To Date $(241,919.56) % Change to Date: (31.4 %)
cro S0 DESCRIPTION TUUAPPROVAL S CHANGE  NEW
MO, DT DROES gconNTRAC

1. Acceptance of Alternate #1 02/19/2019 ($241,815.56) $769,482.47




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-2

AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE TO CONTRACT NO. 2018-070 WITH E.L.
ROBINSON ENGINEERING FOR PROJECT 52N ENGINEERING SERVICES
FOR THE TOWER CITY EAST PORTAL REHABILITATION IN THE AMOUNT
OF $220,459.54 FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $989,942.01 AND
REINSTATING THE GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S
CHANGE ORDER SIGNING AUTHORITY IN ITS ENTIRETY (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deemed it necessary to procure engineering services for
Project 52N Engineering Services for the Tower City East Portal Rehabilitation; and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2019-12, the Board of Trustees authorized Contract No.
2018-070 in an amount of $1,011,402.03 with E.L. Robinson Engineering, located at 1468 West
9" Street, Suite BOO, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, for the furnishing of said engineering services; and

WHEREAS, the contract authorized one (1) change order, reducing the cantract in an
amouni of $241,919.56 for a current contract total in an amount not to exceed $769,482.47; and

WHEREAS, results from the Authority's preliminary investigation now require
engineering services to design the necessary repairs for the portal structures south of the upper
retaining wall above tracks 6, 8, and 10 and replace the portal wali that supports the portal
above track 7, including additional modifications to the maintenance of rail traffic and
replacement of additional sections of track; and

WHEREAS, E.L. Robinson Engineering has offered to provide these additional
engineering services at a total negotiated cost of $220,459.54, which has been determined to
be a fair and reasonable price; and

WHEREAS, said increase will excesd the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer’s
current change order signing authority; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is also seeking Board
authority to reinstate her change order signing autharity in its entirety; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems acceptance of the
offer of E.L. Robinson Engineering, as negotiated, to be in the best interest of the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of E.L. Robinson Engineering to provide additional
engineering services under Project 52N Engineering Services for the Tower City East Portal
Rehabilitation, be and the same is hereby accepted.



Resolution No. 2021-2
Page 2

section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to amend Contract No. 2018-070 with E.L. Robinson Engineering to
include these additional engineering services,

Section 3. That said increase shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering and Project Development Department budget including, but not limited to, 100%
local funds.

Section 4. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order authority
be reinstated in its entirety.

Section 5. That all other terms and conditions of said contract shall remain unchanged.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: January 19, 2021

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Dennis M. Clough, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: india L. Birdsong F@j
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer (/fu":"“:’

Date: January 14, 2021

Subject: Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Prime Contractor for

January 19, 2021 Board Meeting

Please be advised the following resolution involving a DBE firm as the prime contractor will be
presented at the January 19, 2021 Board meating.

* Authonzing Contract No, 2020-182 with Cook Paving & Construction to provide
construction services, for Contract No. 2020-182 — GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities

If you have any questions please feel free to contract me. You can also contact Carl Kirkland,
Director of Office of Business Davelopment directly at (216)-356-3128.

CCHB:CK:db



Form 100-326
070397

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 18.71 GCRTA SALT STORAGE FACILITIES 2021-3

VENDOR: COOK PAVING & CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. Date:
AMOUNT: $275,000.00

January 14, 2021
Initiator:

Engineering & Project
Development

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval [J Review/Comment [ Information Only {1 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action wil! allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 18.71 - GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities.

2.0  DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: It is the intent of this project to furnish, deliver, and install 2
{(two) salt storage facilities; one located at Brook Park Rail Yard and one focated at Woodhill
District. The City of Cleveland informed GCRTA they could no longer provide salt to GCRTA
maintenance during the winter season, GCRTA needs salt to provide safe access to customers at
GCRTA facilities and therefore needs to have proper and adequate salt storage structures
meeting environmental requirements to store bulk rock sait.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-one interested parties,
including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Five bids were received
and opened on December 11, 2020, as foliows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Cook Paving & Construction $275,000.00
Great Lakes Crushing $291,300.00
All Ways Construction $306,530.00
Shirmer Construction LLC $318,000.00
Perrin Asphalt Co. $327,470.00
The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base Bid
price. The Total Base Bid price of $275,000.00 from Cook Paving & Construction, Cao,, Inc. is
8.33% less than the Engineer's Estimate of $300,000.00. Cook Paving & Construction, Co_, Inc.
was determined to be a responsible bidder.
A cost analysis has been performed and the bid of Cook Paving & Construction, Co., Inc. has
been determined by the Procurement Department te be fair and reasonabie to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A DBE goal of 22% was established for this procurement. The prime
contractor is Cook Paving & Construction, a certified DBE (African American female-
owned) firm fulfilling the DBE panrticipation goal established for this contract.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development

Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to 100% local funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $275,000.00,



Staff Summary & Comments 2031
GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities -3
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Rejectthis offer. Rejection of this offer will create a potential for service
interruption and jeopardize customer safety during the winter months.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Cook Paving & Construction,
Co., Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurament
requirements.

y L
T .

f o ,;. . "
e A g
) Mﬁ"‘;{ f‘ﬂ‘;@‘ﬂ”'”" [ ! o

Glneral Manager, Chief Execltive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-3

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-182 WITH COOK PAVING &
CONSTRUCTION, CO., INC. FOR PROJECT 18.71 -~ GCRTA SALT STORAGE
FACILITIES, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TQ EXCEED $275,000.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as
provided under Project 18.71 — GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Cook Paving & Construction, Co., inc., located at 4545 Spring Rd.
Brooklyn Heights, Chio, 44131, was received on December 11, 2020 in an amount not ta
exceed $275,000.00 to perform said services; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Cook
Paving & Construction, Co., Inc. to be a responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Cook Paving & Construction, Co., inc. for Project 18.71 -
GCRTA Salt Storage Facilitiss, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Autherity be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Cook Paving & Construction, Ca., Inc. for
Project 18.71 — GCRTA Salt Storage Facilities.

Section 3. This procurement shail be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to 100% Lacal
funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $275,000.00,

Section 4. That said contract shalt be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, thereto, if any;
the Affirmative Action Pian adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements, and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Clevaland Regional Transit Autharity's Board of Trustees
expects that Cook Paving & Construction, Co., Inc. will attempt to exceed the 22% minimum
DBE goal assigned to this procuremant.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: January 19, 2021

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



ggr&_‘g‘?}mm Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.;

CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF GEMINI PLASTIC SEAT INSERTS
(BACK & BOTTOM-WITH DRAIN HOLES), AS
SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF
ONE (1) YEAR

VENDOR: THE AFTERMARKET PARTS COMPANY, LLC

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $385,078.32

2021-4

Date:
January 14, 2021

[nitiator:
Fleet Management
Department

ACTION REQUEST;
Approval [} Review/Comment (I Information Only ) Other

1.0 PURPQSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract for the
furnishing of Gemini plastic seat inserts, as specified and as required, for a period of one year.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This contract will furnish up to 5,016 each, Gemini seat back
inserts and Gemini seat bottom inserts, with drain holes, for all Gillig bus fleets. This contract
supports the Authority's conversion project to replace fabric seating on all Gillig bus fleets with

plastic seating.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGRQUND: The Invitation for Bid (IFB) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Eight (8) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Two responsive bids were received on December 17, 2020.

A price analysis has been performed and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The Total Bid of The Aftermarket Parts
Company, LLC, has been determined by the Frocurement Department to be the lowest
responsive bid from a responsible bidder. The following is a summary of the bids,

Total Bid Results
Est. Description Unit Price Extended
Quantity Total
The 5,016 fnsert Bottom $36.14 $181,278.24
Aftermarket At
Parts Co., LLG 5,016 Insert Bawck $40.83 $203,800.08
Total Bid | $385,078.32
Gillig LLC 50186 Insert Bottom $36.43 $182,732.88
5016 Insert Bacl $40.96 %205 455 36
Total Bid $388,188.24

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the tack of certified DBE firms.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.



Staff Summary & Comments 2021-4
Gemini Plastic Seat Iinserts
Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement wilt be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $385,078.32 for a period of one

year.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would delay this initiative and impact
the Authority's ability to provide safe and reliable service,

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: itis recommended that the bid of The Aftermarket Parts Company,
LLC be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENT: None.
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

avaifahility of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

*“y ' : S B
A A“ﬂ/'//;“‘“{%

Geﬁéral Manager, Chief Executive Offiger




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-4

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-189 WITH THE AFTERMARKET PARTS
COMPANY, LLC FOR THE FURNISHING OF GEMINI PLASTIC SEAT
INSERTS (BACK & BOTTOM-WITH DRAIN HOLES), AS SPECIFIED AND AS
REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $385,078.32 (GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires the furnishing of
up to 5,016 each of Gemini plastic seat inserts and seat bottoms to replace the current fabric
ones on alt Gillig bus fleets; and

WHEREAS, the bid of The Aftermarket Parts Company LLC, located at 3229 Sawmill
Parkway, Defaware, Ohio 43015 for the furnishing of Gemini plastic seat inserts, as specified
and as required, for a period of one year was raceived on December 17, 2020, at unit prices
resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $385,078.32; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of The
Aftermarket Parts Company LLC, to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Autherity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of The Aftermarket Parts Company LLC, for the furnishing of
Gemini plastic seat inserts, as specified and as required, for a period of one year be and the
same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with The Aftermarket Parts Company LLC., for the furnishing
of Gemini plastic seat inserts, as specified and as required, for a period of one year,

Section 3. This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $385,078.32 for a period of one
year.

Section 4, That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upen compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements and ali applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that The Aftermarket Parts Company LLC, will attempt to excead the 0% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: January 19, 2021

President

Aftest;

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Interoffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Mayor Dennis M. Clough, President
and Members, Board of Trustees
From: India L. Birdsong =
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer @
Date: January 14, 2021
Subject: Oracle and Ultramain Software Maintenance and Support Services

At the January 19, 2021 meeting of the Board of Trustees, GCRTA will seek approval to award
two contracts for renewals of software maintenance and support services.

Contract No. 2021-001 is for the annual renewal of the Oracle Enterprise Business Suite
database and applications. These include Financial, Procurement and HR/Payroli applications,
as well as, GCRTA applications that interface with Oracle database technology inctuding
HASTUS, Ultramain, Krongs, Riskmaster and various Trapeze products. The GCRTA
purchased this financial software from Qracle Corporation in 1991, Oracle developed the
Enterprise Business Suite for GCRTA on a proprietary basis and is the only source authorized
to maintain the system.

Contract No. 2020-002 is for a three year renewal of the Ultramain “CITME" software application
maintenance and support. This software is an intricate part of the Operations Division that
manages the Authority's inventary and work order system, materials usage, as well as the labor
utilization for both Fleet and Facilities Mapagement. The software application interfaces with
the Authority’s Oracle Financial Management and Purchasing System. The Authority is
currently in the process of upgrading the software, which hasn't been upgraded since its
implementation in 2004. Ultramain Systems, Inc. developed this maintenance and materials
management system on a proprietary basis and is the only source for maintenance services.

Section 306.43(H)(3) of the Ohio Revised Code states that competitive bidding is not required
when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, service or systems, or for the
maintenance thereof as supplied by the original source or its successors or assigns. Since both
of these firms are the original installers of their software applications, this regulation applies.

Regulations do allow GCRTA to negotiate with the providers of these proprietary software
services. The attached resolutions recommend contract awards to Oracle Corporation and
Ultramain Systems, Inc., at negotiated amounts, which are deemed fair and reasonable to the
Authority.

Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information prior to Tuesday's
meeting.

IB/MD

Attachmenis



;';‘6{';’26 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
070397 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: ORACLE SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT 2021-5
Date:
VENDOR:  ORACLE CORPORATION January 14, 2021
initiator:
AMOUNT:  NTE $388,132.99 FOR A ONE YEAR PERIOD !pfc’rmﬂtmn
echnology
Department

ACTION REQUEST!
& Approval [1 Review/Comment [ Information Only 1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

PURPOQSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to renew a sole source agreement
for the annual software maintenance and support on various Oracle applications for a period
of one year.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has utilized Qracle technology and
applications since 1995, Annual maintenance and support is required to maintain the Oracle
Enterprise Business Suite — Financials, Procurement, and HR/Payroll applications, as well as
the Oracle technical platform for other GCRTA applications. These applications include
HASTUS, Ultramain, Kronos, Riskmaster and various Trapeze products. Oracie technology
platform and applications are proprietary products designed exclusively by the Oracle
Corporation.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROQUND: This contract for maintenance and support services is
exempt from competitive bidding as authorized under Section 306.43(H)(3) of the Ohio
Revised Code. Oracle Corporation developed the Enterprise Business Suite on a proprietary
basis and is the only source authorized to maintain the system. After negotiations, Oracle
Corporation offered to provide maintenance and support for the various Qracle software
products for a negotiated amount not to exceed $388,132.99 for a one year period. The
Infarmation Technology Department reviewed the offer for adherence to technical scope.

The negotiated price is approximately 8% befow the budget estimate. A price analysis has
been performed and the Procurement Department has determined that the negotiated price
is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement because it is
for the maintenance of proprietary software, which work is {imited and exclusive to the
original provider and instalier by agreement.

POLICY IMPACT. Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be funded through the General Fund,
Information Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed
$388,132.99 for a period of one year.



Staff Summary & Comments 2021-5

Oracle Annual Maintenance & Support
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES. Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Oracie software
applications without adequate maintenance and support and jeopardize the functionality of
critical Financial, Procurement and HR/Payroll systems vital to the organization.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommmended that the offer of Oracle Corporation be accepted
and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter
into a contract,

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None,

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal formn and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

MM’-:::;? ”J__wa ﬂ T ~ 8
o J:"";f:.-ww’.‘f«;ﬂ-‘W' Pcaturd
Ge?éral Manager, Chief Executive Officer




RESOLUTION NQ. 2021-5

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NQ. 2021-001 WITH ORACLE CORPQRATION TO
FROVIDE QRACLE SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES
FOR A PERICOD OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TQ EXCEED
$388,132.99 (GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority currently utilizes Qracle-licensed products for financial,
procurement, and human resource management applications: and

WHEREAS, annual maintenance and support are required to maintain these software
applications; and

WHEREAS, these services are avaitable from Oracle Corporation, located at 500 Qracle
Parkway, Redwood City, CA 84065, the original licensor of these products; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code, Section 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive
bidding is not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or
license for telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services or systems, or
for the upgrade of such equipment, services or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as
supplied by the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, Oracle Corporation has offered to provide said maintenance and support
services at a negotiated amount not to exceed $388,132.99 for a period of one year; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Qracle
Corporation, as negotiated, to provide maintenance and support services for the Oracle
software applications, to be in the hest interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFQRE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Obhio:

Section 1. That the offer of Oracle Corporation, as negotiated, to provide Oracle
software maintenance and support services for a period of one year be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a sole source contract with Oracle Corporation to provide
said services.

Section 3. The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $388,132.99 for a period of one
year.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any: the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees, bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual ebligations of the Authority.



Fesolution No. 2021-5
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Oracle Corporation will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to

this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption,

Adopted: January 19, 2021

President

Attest:

interim Secretary-Treasurer



}%‘6{'}‘2 . Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
070397 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION; Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: ULTRAMAIN SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 20216
Date:
VENDOR:  ULTRAMAIN SYSTEMS, INC January 14, 2021
Initiator:
AMOUNT:  NTE $373,093.80 FOR ONE YEAR, WITH TWO ANNUAL | {nformation
RENEWALS IN AMOUNTS NTE $386,152.09 AND echnology
Department

$399,667.41, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT
AMOUNT NTE $1,158,913.30

B Approval (I Review/Comment (i Information Only [ Other

ACTION REQUEST;

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

PURPQSE/SCOPE: This action wil! allow the Authority to enter into a sole source agreement
for software maintenance and support for its CITME maintenance and materials management
system for a period of one year with two annual renewals,

DESCRIPTIONAJUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires a maintenance agreement for the
CITME maintenance and materials management system. This system is an integral part of
the Operations Division that manages materials usage and the work order system, including
documentation of labor used to provide both fieet and facilities management. CITME also
provides real time updates to the Authority’s inventory system. It is interfaced to the
Authority’s Oracle Financial Management and Purchasing system. The reports generated
through CITME provide management tools that allow for analysis of both maintenance
processes and contractor performance,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: This sole source contract is exempt from compatitive
bidding as authorized under Section 306.43(H)(3) of the Ohio Revised Code. Ultramain
Systems, Inc. (fka Software Solutions Unlimited) developed this maintenance and materials
management system on a proprietary basis and is the only source for maintenance services.
The maintenance contract will cover a one-year period from February 1, 2021 through
January 31, 2022, in the amount of $373,093.80. It will also include two annual maintenance
renewal periods from February 1, 2022 through January 31, 2023 and February 1, 2023
through January 31, 2024 in negotiated amounts not to exceed $386,152.09 and
$399,667 41 respectively. Annual increases were negotiated at 3,5%, per year, over each
prior year.

The Procurement Department requested a proposat from Ultramain Systems, Inc, The
intelligent Transportation Systems and Information Technology departments reviewed the
proposal for adherence to the technical requirements. A cost analysis was perdformed and
the Procurement Department has determined the negotiated price to be fair and reasonable

to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement because it is
for maintenance of propristary software, which work is limited and exclusive to the original
pravider and installer by agreement.




Staff Summary & Comments 2021-6
Ultrarnain Software Maintenance
Page 2

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract will be funded through the General Fund,
Information Technology Department budget in an amount not to exceed
$373,093.80 for a one year period beginning February 1, 2021, with two annual
renewals in amounts not to exceed $386,152.09 and $399,667 41, respectively, for
a total contract amount not to exceed $1,158,913.30. This is within the budgeted
arnount for this project.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the CITME/Ultramain
software application without adequate rmaintenance and support and jeopardize the
functionality of the critical maintenance and materials management system vital to the
organization.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recornmended that the offer of Uitramain Systems, Inc. be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None,

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

ﬂ"'/f L
or o h o g -
—-"M ol C- hd M/égj\aﬂ

Gene??rél Manager, Chief Executive Qffidar




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-6

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2021-002 WITH ULTRAMAIN SYSTEMS, INC.
TO PROVIDE SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE FOR THE AUTHORITY'S CITME
MAINTENANCE AND MATERIALS MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FOR A PERIOD
OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $373,093.80, WITH TWO
ANNUAL RENEWALS IN AMOUNTS NOT TO EXCEED $386,152.09 AND
$399,667.41, RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $1,158,913.30. (GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority currently utilizes Ultramain Systems, Inc. licensed products for
its maintenance and materials management applications; and

WHEREAS, this maintenance and materials management software is proprietary to
Ultramain Systems, Inc. {f k.a. Software Solutions Unlimited), the original provider and installer
of this software; and

WHEREAS, the offer of Ultramain Systems, Inc. located at 8100 Lang Avenue,
Albuquerque, New Mexico 871089, to provide software maintenance and support services was
received on Decermnber B, 2020: and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code, Section 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive
bidding is not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or
license for telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services or systems, or
for the upgrade of such equipment, services or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as
supplied by the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, an amount of $373,093.80 for a one-year period
beginning February 1, 2021, with two annual renewals in amounts not to exceed $386,152.09
and $399,667.41, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,158,813.30 was
agreed upon; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Ultramain
Systems, Inc., as negotiated, to provide maintenance and support services for the CITME
maintenance and materials management system, to be in the best interest of the Authority and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Ultramain Systems, Inc., as negotiated, to provide sofiware
maintenance and support services for the Authority's CITME maintenance and materials
management system for a period of one year beginning February 1, 2021, with two annual
renewals, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Autharity be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a sole source contract with Ultramain Systems, Inc. to
provide said services.



Resolution No, 2020-6
Page 2

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the General Fund, information
Technology Department budget in an amount not to exceed $373,093.80 for a one-year period
beginning February 1, 2021, with two annual renewals in amounts not to exceed $386,152.09
and $389 667 41, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,158,913.30.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any, the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees: bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 3, That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Ultramain Systems, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted; January 19, 2021

President

Aftest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100-326

07-03-97 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE 2021-7

VENDOR: CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH

AMOUNT:

CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH FOR THE

BABY ON BOARD PROGRAM Date:

January 14, 2021

Initiator:
N/A Programming and
Planning

ACTION REQUEST:
[x] Approval [0 Review/Comment L[ Information Only [l Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU") with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health ("“CCBH") to implement
the Baby on Board Program funded through a grant from the Ohio Department of
Transpertatien (“ODOT") Ohio Transit Partnership Program (“OTP2").

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: GCRTA and CCBH collaborated on the OTP2 grant
application to assist with the transportation needs of expectant and new mothers in three
specific zip codes, 44108, 44110, 44112, with high rates of infant mortality. These census
tracts were selected by the Cuyahoga County Board of Health through its statistical
assessment and analysis process.

Transportation is often cited as a primary reason for missed maternity medical appointments
and well-baby visits. The Baby on Board Program will provide monthly transit passes for
clients enrolled in prenatal programs of CCBH partner agencies to assist with transportation
costs to maternity and Heaithy Baby related appointments. The grant funds will be used to
supply the CCBH with up to $100,000 in fare media, at market rate. GCRTA wili also upgrade
transit-waiting areas throughout the target area to assist in creating safe transit waiting
environments,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: N/A
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: N/A

FOLICY IMPACT: Entering into this agreement is consistent with GCRTA's Strategic Plan. It
can create additional ridership while assisting in addressing a critical social need in the
community.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The additional grant funds will aliow GCRTA to enhance transit-
waiting environments throughout the targeted area without expenditure of Authority funds,

ALTERNATIVES: Reject the MOU. Rejection of this MOU will prevent GCRTA and CCBH
from providing transportation assistance to the clients of this programming.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the MOU with CCBH be approved by the
Board of Trustees at its January 19, 2021 meeting.




Staff Summary and Comments 2021.7
MOU with the Cuyahoga County Board of Haaith
Page 2

8.0 ATTACHMENT: Attachment A - MOU with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health,
Attachment B — Map of Target area

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and confarmance with
the Procurement requirements.

~ - 2
_.am.(/’&;a T A
Gepferal Manager, Chief Executive Officey




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-7

AUTHORIZING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE
CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
BABY ON BOARD PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*GCRTA") submitted a
grant application to the Ohio Department of Transportation (“ODOT") in collaboration with the
Cuyahoga County Board of Health (“CCBH") for the Baby on Board Program; and

WHEREAS, ODOT awarded GCRTA $400,000 for the Baby on Board Program; and

WHEREAS, the implementation of a portion of this program necessitates the execution
of a Memorandurn of Understanding between the parties; and

WHEREAS, the Baby on Board Program is an innovative approach to serving a targeted
popuiation that has historically had transportation issues in accessing maternity and well-baby
appointments, which contributes to extremely high infant mortality rates; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA and the CCBH desire ta enter into a memorandum of
understanding governing the use of the grant funding secured from ODOT to implement the
Baby on Board Program,; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA will provide fare media to CCBH, at market rate, in an amount not
to exceed $100,000 and grant funding secured from ODOT will reimburse GCRTA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE |IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority be and is hereby authorized to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding ("MOU") with the Cuyahoga County Board of Health to implement the Baby on
Board Program.

Section 2. That funds from the ODOT Ohio Transit Partnership Program SY 2021 grant
will be used to provide fare media to the Cuyahoga County Board of Health in an amount not to
exceed $100,000 for the Baby on Board Program.

Section 3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: January 19, 2021

President

Attested:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



DRAFT

ATTACHMENT A

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
Between
Cuyahoga County Board of Health (“CCBH")
And
The Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (*"GCRTA")

GCRTA received a grant in the amount of $400,000 from the SFY2021 Ohio Transit Partnership
Program through the Qhio Department of Transportation ("ODQT") for the Baby on Board — A
Healthy Baby Initiative program (“Program”). A portion of this funding is to be used for the cost
of providing bus passes to CCBH for distribution to agencies serving pregnant women living in
the specific zip codes of 44108, 44110 and 44112 to provide transportation to these women and
children to access healthcare services. This area has very high rates of infant mortality and
85% of women identified transportation as a barrier to accessing healthcare. The Program is
approved for a period of twenty-two months, with 50% of the funds to be spent by May 30, 2021
and 50% to be spent by May 30, 2022 (“Program Period”).

GCRTA will serve as the grant manager and fiscal agent, and CCBH will ensure the enrollment
of all program participants, as required by the grant documentation. GCRTA will provide
monthly bus/rapid passes to CCBH who will distribute passes to the participants of the Program
for the purpose of reducing infant mortality in the zip codes identified. GCRTA will request
reimbursement from QDOT for the value of the fare media (based on GCRTA’s fare schedule)
documented by CCBH as distributed to participants of the Program, for a total amount not to
exceed $100,000.

The responsibilities of CCBH under this agreement are as follows:

1. Track the distribution of GCRTA fare media to the program participants and report the
amounts to GCRTA on a monthly basis.

2. Provide travel training to educate clients on how to navigate and ride GCRTA services if
required by the participant.

3. Collect and analyze data from program recipients.
4, Complete a written report of findings.

5. Designate management staff to participate in monthly program meetings to discuss and
facilitate the achievement of Program goals including fare equity.

The responsibilities of GCRTA under this agreement are as follows:

1. Distribute GCRTA fare media to CCBH.
2. Report Participation Numbers to ODOT on a Quarterly basis.

3. Provide customized travel training to CCBH staff to educate clients and staff on how to
navigate and ride GCRTA buses and/or trains if this is requested by any of the
participating agencies,



4. Designate management staff to participate in regularly scheduled program meetings to
discuss and facilitate the achievement of Program goals,

GCRTA and CCBH mutually agree as follows:

1. Al grant funds must be spent within the Program Period and for the Baby on Board
program and for no other purpose.

2. A written report of findings will be completad by CCBH, no later than June 1, 2022,
3. CCBH and GCRTA will be included in all media coverage.
4, Payment will be made by GCRTA, reimbursed by ODOT, with the fare media to be

distributed by CCBH to agencies in the target zip codes within fourteen (14) calendar
days of receipt.

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL CUYAHOGA COUNTY BOARD OF
TRANSIT AUTHORITY HEALTH

India L. Birdsong Date Terry Allan Date
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer Health Commissioner

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND CORRECTNESS:

BY:
Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy Generai Manager for Legal Affairs




eoedbEA

A ViR L

HEYREHTHIHN

"
ey
ey

b RS,

W et M

SOV

(AR

_East

Cleveland

arlird

wi i

VR

e

g §

g

JELT

Baby on Board Program Area

&D



porm 1 20-326 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
' STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
EASEMENT: GRANT OF PERMANENT RIGHT-OF-WAY AND 2021-8
EASEMENT TO THE EAST OHIO GAS COMPANY Date:
(‘'DOMINION") TO ACCESS AND MAINTAIN THE January 14, 2021

GRANTEE: THE EAST OHIO GAS COMPANY ("DOMINION")

AMOUNT: $10,000.00

MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION ON ”
CUYAHOGA COUNTY PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER | Initiator:
671-07-002, LOCATED AT THE HAYDEN GARAGE IN | Programming &
EAST CLEVELAND, OHIO FOR THE PRICE OF Planning
$10,000.00

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [} Review/Comment [ Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution seeks Board approval to grant a permanent right-of-way
and easement to the East Ohio Gas Company ("Dominion”) for the purpose of constructing,
maintaining and having access to a measuring and regulating station {the “Station") on GCRTA
property known as PPN 671-07-002 located at the Hayden Garage, East Cieveland, OH.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The easement for this Station consists of 0.068 acres or
2,862.08 square feet. The Station has been a fixture at the Property since GCRTA took
ownership after the Mass Transit Systam Transfer Agreement from CTS in 1975, Dominion was
also granted a Temporary Right of Entry to perform the construction in a separate document
that was executed by the General Manager and effective on June 24, 2020 and subsequently
extended so that the Temporary Right of Entry now expires on December 31, 2021.

The easement will not interfere with the present or future use of the GCRTA property nor create
any safety hazards,

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The Real Estate Paolicies of the GCRTA specify that the Board of Trustees
must approve any permanent easement with a value equal to or in excess of $2,500,00. The
easement described herein is a permanent easement under Chapter 470 of GCRTA's Code of

Rules and Regulations.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The value of the easement was determined to be $10,000.00 by
comparing what similar entities have paid. The funds received for granting this easement will
be deposited in the GCRTA Generat Fund.

ALTERNATIVES: The RTA can refuse to grant the easement.




Staff Summary & Comments
Dominion Easement
Fage 2

2021-8

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board of Trustees approve the resolution to
authorize granting the Permanent Right-of-way and Easement to Dominion.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: A, Draft Easement
B. Easement Legal Description
C. Easement Location Map

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

7 -

Gweﬁeral Manager, Chief Executive Officér




ATTACHMENT A

DRAFT EASEMENT

MEASURING & REGULATING STATION EASCMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority, a regional transit authority organized and existing as a political subdivision of the State
of Ohio under Chapter 306 of the Ohio Revised Code, acting pursuant to Resolution No, 2021-

, adopted by its Board of Truslees on . 2021 the GRANTOR herein,
claiming title by or through an instrument recorded in Volume 13869, Page 547, Cuyahoga County
Records, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hercby
acknowledged, does hereby grant, convey, and warrant unto The East Ohio Gas Company d/b/a
Dominion Energy Ohio, an Ohio corporation, having a principal place of business at 1201 East
55th Street, Attention: Land Servieces, Cleveland, Ohio, 44103, its successors and assigns
(hereinatter called “Grantee™), the perpetual right-of-way and easement to lay, install, construet,
maintain, operate, alter, repatr, replace, service, ingpect, conduct necessary tests, connect to,
change the size of, abandon in place, relocate and remove above ground Measuring and Regulating
Station(s), plus underground pipelines and other necessary above and below ground appurtenances
(collectively the “Facilities™), all of which shall be and remain the property of Grantee, for the
transmission of natural gas and all by-products thercof, over, under, across, and upon the lands
described in this Easement, together with the right to excavate and refill ditches and trenches for
the location of such Facilities, and the further right to remove trees, hushes, undergrowth, and other
obstructions interfering with the Jocation, consiruction, and maintenance of the Facilities, along
with the right of ingress and egress to the Facilities at all times, on the following described land
owned by Grantor, being the Subject Property.

SUBJECT PROPERTY AND EASEMENT AREA

Situated 1n the City of East Cleveland, County of Cuyahoga, and State of Ohio and
known as being part of Original One Hundred Acre Lots Nos. 374 and 382 and part of Original
Euclid Township Lots Nos. 4 and 5 in the Doan Tract.

Tax Parcel No(s): 671-07-002
Deed Reference(s): V13869/P677

Page 10f3



The Facilities latd pursuant 1o this Easement will be located within the limits of an easernent area
deemed necessary by Grantee and further defined and depicted in Exhibit “A” (tbe “Easement
Area”™), attached hereto and made a part hereof,

Grantor shall not install, construci, or permit to be installed or constructed, any house, shed, tree,
structure, or obstruction of any kind (collectively, the “Obstructions”) on or over said Easement
Area that will inierfere with the construction, maintenance, or operation of the Pipeline Facilities
consiructed hereunder. Grantee has the right to remove the Qbstructions on or over the Easement
Area without Hability to Grantor.

TEMPORARY RIGHT OF ENTRY. In addition to the Easement Area, Grantor grants
Grantee an additional temporary right of entry for the purpose of enabling Grantee to ¢onstruct,
maintain, and repair the Facilitics more efficiently (the “Temporary Right of Entry”). The
Temporary Right of Entry is further depicted in the attached Exhibit “A” and further defined in
the unrecorded Temporary Right of Entry Agreement between the parties, with an cffective date
of June 24, 2020, The automatic termination date in the Temporary Right of Eniry Agreement is
hereby extended by one year, to December 31, 2021.

GRANTEE’S USE AND REPAIR. Grantee shall repair, replace, or compensate Grantor
for any harm or damage that Grantee inflicts upon Grantor’s existing and permitted improvements
within the Easement Area, or irnprovements outside the Easement Arca in the process of Grantee
exercising any of its herein declared rights upon the Subject Property.

MISCELLANEQUS. No implied covenant, apreement, or obligation shall be read into
this Easement. Grantor represents and warrants that the individual executing this Easement on
behalf of Grantor is a duly authorized representative of Grantor and has the authority to bind
Grantor as set forth herein. This Easement shall be interpreted, enforced, and governed under the
laws of the State of Ohio,

THE REMAINDER QF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK. SIGNATURE(S) TO
FOLLOW.

Page 2 of 3



IN WITNESS WHERLEOF, Grantor hereby acknowledges, understands, and agrees to all
the contents, terms, conditions, restrictions, and effects of this instrument and grants this Easement
by executing this document as of the day of . 2021,

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

India L. Birdsong
(ieneral Manager, Chief Executive Officer

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:
By

Sheryl King Benford, General Counsel
Deputy General Manager for Legal Affairs

STATE OF OHIO )
) 58
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA )

SWORN TO BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and
State, personally appeared India L. Birdsong, as General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, a political subdivision of the State of Ohio, and
known to me or proved to me, on the basis of satisfactory evidence, to be the person whose name
15 subseribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that they were authorized to execute the
same on behalf of the political subdivision and did so as a free act and deed.

WITNESS my hand and oflicial seal this day of , 2021,

Notary Public
My Commission expires:

Ohio Law requires all parties to contact OHIORTT Before You Dig. Call 811 (or 1-800-362-2764)
at least 48 hours but not mote than 10 working days before digging or excavating, ORC - 3781.28 A&DR

This Instrument Was Prepared By:
Dominion Enerpgy Ohio, 320 Springgide Dr, Akron, OH 44333, October 2019
File # Relerence # 19-021 1 SAP # 63585198

Page 3 of 3



ATTACHMENT R

0.068 Acre WHility Easement
From
Greater Cleveland Ragional Transit Authority
To
Dominion Enargy Ohlo

) Jﬂ“ - - " " Déan Averue " -
! —
=

Grapiee Clavedinmd Regitnid Trgntil Authority
(Vil. 13069, Py, 54T)
PICY; 67107002

DBeegription of a 0.068 Acre Utliity Easemant
Situated In the Gity of East Claveland, County of Cuyahoga and State of Ohlo:

Being part of Griginel Evelid Township Lot §, part of & imat a5 conveyed o Groater Clevabng 25 0 1
Regional Trangtt Aulonty by Deed Valunie 13868, Page 547 of the Cuyahops County Dead
Racords. and being more pariiculary described as follows:

Seala in Feel
Begirning al 8 Monument Box found at the centerdine intersection of Doan Averue and Hayden T, 1050
Avante;

S I0BERE DY,
L OMILANG
B-8457 o F

Thence 5 237 07° 35" W along the contertine of Hayden Avenue, 8 diatance of 84.53 feet to a palnt;

Thence S 89" 52' 25" E, a distanca of 35.00 feat to 8 paint on the southasst ine of Haydan Avenue,

said puinl being tha TRUE PLAGE OF BEGINNING of said Ensument; R

1) Thenge 5 68° 33 207 B, & distancs of B1.31 faet i 2 poink
Thence 5 38" 32' 087 E, 3 distance of 24.95 fsel (o » point;

Thanee 5 07 51' 207 W, 8 distorice of 25.30 Mal 10 a poft; )
Thance N 63* 22' 20" W, a deiance of 93.07 fest o 8 potnt; 1 f ﬁsm/é‘,{d

et D, Milano I, P.S. B457

2
k)
1

-_—

5) Thernee N 237 07 35" E along the northwast ina of said Grester Cleveland Regloned Transit
Authority parcel, which is the soulboast line of Mayden Avieud, 3 digtance of 35.70 fe Lo the

TRUE PLACE OF BEGINNING and conlainimy 0.088 acres of iand, more or less, 83 Prepiarad by
dutormingd by David Bode & ASSouaes, Ine, in Seplember 2020, bid sobject 1 aH egat David Bodo & Associatas, Inc.
rughways and any easemants, restriclions or reservations of racord. Professions! Surveyors '
5175 Tongo Rd MW
The Bazla of Bearlrg for this descriplion was based on CGrid North {Ohle Stete Plane Coordinate Cerroliton, Ohlo 44615 {330) 863-2200

System, Morth fone, NAD B3) as dotermined from GPS obsotvalinns made it Seplena 2020 by
Bavid Bodo & Assoctates, inc., Dk Qctaber 12, 2020 JOB No. 20218




MO LAY ¥O04 @3SN 39 0L LON S d%i SiHd g Bl <My ENEEN s FEEL SOM
JutiDeloLd

S H FoEE W
wm mh nhw m "FHIEIFE TSIMISI0 JO TUEEING “SReIne
s 3t o AR 1o Aew de sH) uo Jeadde Jmy) siade) Bjeq Ajud sauara) 1o 51
PuE olls Sinddew jausar) UE Wy INndine S0ets paplauss Jaen @ 5| dew sl i

— Aunony oBoyoAny e

e —
o

3oed

suzisue] pateld -
A 40 B
sEed|unW
puaba

OZOZMS (pRlea] 3le]

o
o




RESOLUTION 2021-8

AUTHORIZING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY TO GRANT A PERMANENT RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT
TO THE EAST OHIO GAS COMPANY ("DOMINION" TO ACCESS AND
MAINTAIN THE MEASURING AND REGULATING STATION ON CUYAHOGA
COUNTY PERMANENT PARCEL NUMBER 671-07-002, LOCATED AT THE
HAYDEN GARAGE IN EAST CLEVELAND, OHIO FOR THE PRICE OF
$10,000.00

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity (‘GCRTA") is the owner of
record of the property known as Cuyahoga County Permanent Parcel Number 671-07-002 at
1661 Hayden Avenue in East Cleveland, Ohio (the "Froperty”); and

WHEREAS, the East Ohio Gas Company (“Dominion”) wishes to replace and maintain a
metering station (the “Station”); and

WHEREAS, the Dominion will require entrance to the Property for construction, access
and maintenance of the Station by way of a permanent right-of-way and easement; and

WHEREAS, the permanent right-of-way and easement covers 0.068 acres or 2,962.08
square feet of the Property; and

WHEREAS, the permanent right-of-way and easement will not interfere with GCRTA's
present or future use of the Property nor create any safety hazards; and

WHEREAS, the fair market value of the permanent right-of-way and easement has been
determined by comparisons with similar agreements.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Chio:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
grant a permanent right-of-way and easement to the East Ohio Gas Company (“Dominion”) on
Permanent Parcel Number 67 1-07-002, located at 1661 Hayden Avenue (the “Property"), East
Cleveland, Ohio for the price of $10,000.00.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to
execute all documents required to grant the permanent right-of-way and easement to Dominion
and allow access to the Property.

Section 3. That the funds received for granting this permanent right-of-way and
easament will be deposited in the GCRTA General Fund.

Section 4, That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: January 19, 2021

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



E LR Y Inuanag

ST WIHTE TEBESTE S5 A3'MESTT 5 LACSKROLE 5 NOODOL {R¥T5E) EEET'E(STT] 5 mwtlave 5 BT AR $ TN BRI - IAEDIY HEYD Teddte

RO whe il BEL'DETEL 1593 T GEX T BET HRET %385 ESE'paa’s) SSELLES BELBE HEWD 30 CLTERCS HIHLO ONY SLNTECH AR 1HLO1ans
Tk RE - DLTLEB'TTT - QELECETT W . - . - o STV TwEI 0
%550 w5 [T #'0FT AL TER'T Hit'o ImatT6F LEEr'sa3) =50 0ae'st 55dIZ234 SO0INEEEI MY
®EL'D BRUELS ELO'ETS o' £he'rE w0 - - . - FINTUSELY DhELYI 30D 1103
s Imsrs) fedl'sEn'r) LET'$D'(T TR P 'se poe ] - STl Eith ] - AU T ELELE AHIGTE) TR NI AAIHAATR
=5 g1 es B9 'T) tac'iisy ES2"IES W30 ixAr an| (BTEET1 TEFEET SIS AL IO AL I NS T 15 s
wirn RELES TR'EseL £2T°195T TREDIO'E ®EED 560 0l £6r95¢] SSEGIE L5032 SINMLTE el e alad fOwang

A0 330105 PSS OMF 51 NIWLT Sl 8

W 12356 Tl SHETSE Crhes'E %Er'1 =] e T6T) LR 16 W AMNIATE UIH LD Lo 5
L [EATEE] [ES3T] TS ESt'vnT el [EYET] [ChE) g FELUSL EiHiID
w&Ta tmgrEel [EECg 3] pleg i o] 304 [ E | loae'sed F0ESE Fus'st ST SSTEIIN
g o el e g la] T06'99E 95T . EETD oAl | [215757] $6r LaTIE IO TU L2
%313 EEEY bCTED A0EI9E ¥F3TGS HEED LI LBLT ru £90°ce SHNOSTIANO 5131 SEHEET TN
A5 ®EDZ 9858 SISE0CT AT ERe’T HOBY Fagay] IL057Err: fty-y FTEEAL SRS MG SRR 2 ) M ke s A

TN TG E

RIsS EROETY (115w S TEL T ST LT CELr T [T SELEERY'EE SSUTRE AT THIUSRAL BRI YHId0 LD LB
BIFLS =neat D187 | BEXTROTIT f-T TN FH] HEpEd [ETT ] loes'gezt SEL'GEST FE R KHLFN ¥ SIS

IIOR AT DY Eiat)

HACY [l BS503R0 TR FRIY Bl [T |egssze3] T HTE TIRTSLT STBYS FIONITENA THLOLARE
"I =] TOEETe's 2T =ap'T [ET=FR) [ L= SARGET SHIITAIE DB
REED el OSEBSEE AT =500 e |Dss" Ty BEA'CSE HIDASE Sheer
=ia 1] O0UH0EY BOETE Boe - 0#£'T - GIEY FHPERY 44N - NS
HSET [asFar l9ereei sl 9EaTL'EL HIETEL HETE [Er24-04] Is6T' 220} AFEOL FAFSRR 1195 LaxLsses
BISY DEFER] {rrtmetel R (5 . T SN 4§ ¢ 3 15 5 WATE Imsasy] Bl 4341 5 ReSTL % EWPIsE b3 STHEZ HERD

- RLET T o ]

™I FONSRO WTTH YA (=148 [-hE} THIOL D% SRS DARTIHEA HLWOW LIE== ]
INFFHT =HIT o7 AMIHHMY HA S lm=en

BILT "T£ BIGWIIF0 ONY OO0 “0E Sriwaa0 42653 40M3d IHLEDE
ONAd T HIE - BY 3L YOTHE O L (FHFAWCD CIAITITN HEwD 30 LdDaTH
ALHTHLNY 5P HL WHOIDFY ONTI3A31T $LYaHS JHL




o[y WY uany

—_— ———— e aaan s s

%L LT E FE =TT $  ZEEES ALt §  SLire'tar T [E=37) ZESTrESE £ Tdreeror S TRCSEXTE H 1M TEY32D - 001333 H5eD TeIol

Y05 L] £30ETE 62T IS BET RIS 1T HEF 0 [ B WSO 9175k 36E9E TS B 40 TGS FIRLD INY SLKIWISE LY 1710 LaRY
[ E QEILEETEL AT e (13 E £ B - - - L35 £ U103
KRG HIHESIT SIS ISTT s GROEEL BErD Lol trzrEl 0a¢sr IiE'LT S3dIEEd SRGTHYTIIZSN
850 - 4705 EPL'FIY - L - - - - TIrseat DHEVEIA0 TeElaT
HIES HE0 - WD Loy it oo - [FETy: o] - RS L2 Tk "R LS T HIGE) e IININ T A
L=t s HIBG £35°% '8 aGsEs £ [EXTEH] LAy Ted'st 't [HZLR 3N "2LS I EIEAT LSFA ISR LTS
=050 o HL 8 TELEEE [ELnE icad il Rl |02z IEaEE] iy 0LiTe SENMIZE KWL TR0 Y4 MM 11

HEFS 0 SR A A O OE S IFiSS BRI

T AR SE] 1B LT[ TLLOME'E LIRS ia'y {=igs| 1022 BE+) BES BT Pya'End NI ER0 THLOIRS
e 0 [N e ST s3E300 [ =T ETUE] B3] |5eELTH TEL'EL BLEEGT d4ELD
E ] B4R BLE HLASY HEF'RLL »a0' imetar =40 Bs'glh i1 DA LTINS
HLTD Honne; [9E'55L Lt %o Heroys] |oax's; W [HG 5 KON TRLMTE
wara (gl 25708 ocn's[9 b THOTEE] IS2655 i ] 13 T SNOETRPOY 53 SLHGTY SHINYS
W5 Y ] F b 2041~ 4 olohd . L ] Is=="¢ 51| rIE'EaT FRGTE MRS N0 SOsT oy 2 Y AT

ATNGATH BIME

LTSS %o 5, "Br's) BEYIRT 05T ELT'®EE'532 KIkE3 ey {EL3'rs5k SS0°23TYT HZERCR'ST SHEITINS S LWHI 40 1 LOKANS
ETEH In s R Il ELT'ERLETZ HIPER k7| 1529°E58] esm2ar aZ SEESETHL L1 350 3L

STNCEETS FHLLFo et

HEEH (L5 AT TR T o T e T8t ey RITTE] {EEL 1A} TEEWSLT 595 BET T T3 HFINS S TYAoLAnG
HTE B R FEE] LEC-EEEY SRHER'E wIFL [EGTE] efe'Ery SUERGT FETST DRIIAEL TN
wESD BIEG EEDYE SOETTLE 24ETETE %S0T I T cO'a5E THEEL SEYU-A
nIEa Isac=s| fenEtat'st SEY LA SETOL'Y LRl Cle ) 14] iEreTgel SEEE IPEIRL SAHWDIHRE JNFINIS - CEKT
HEERL LEERE| (REwrirst g T Te's5ET HELL =c ] 1eB el Targek THYSEL EEA LR RIEF ]
“E |xrege] ey e 5 steuss's 5 cagsLpST S weLE [k zed 12E5El T Awses 5 Enrne & STEVS BT

BT o

UL a5 s ETH TIrmlawn i Eandrg A, OLE AnNEHR TIMAFETL W Hantily
SNTHHID ot 1 wWor AMIHHT LSTIHET 2¥anq

GLEE "TE HIBWI 3G QI0NI 002Ed 3143 oo
WM Trd2NAD - 132ANE QL CFATaPILS G3IAITITH HEWY 403 FH04TS
ALBOHLT LISN¥RE TOMODIE AR ASTT FLLY IS IHL




{%22s) WELL FSUEELE
IONVIEVA  IONTHS LY
153 % QL4 % QLA 0202 QL

BZOE  SNSHIA FZOZ VEUE

TLAEELBES FELEDE'BES BLE'ELE LS

ETRY L INLFE] ¥NLOY ATLDY
a TS LA 4 FIEN
2z e GEOZ

YRy

Aewung

FSLOLE'BEE  SSO0ZL'SIYS BIPLYLTNES GLOT6L'TLZE TYLOL

LBS'vRZ'SLE | coozertass SEL0EEILE H3AW303G

S9F'eEP' LS | £5ET180S2S &FE LGS HIGWANCN

ERS'ZIOELE | 102 DisBEs PR G ILE HIAAGLOG

GSE'LZE'DEE | EGRESUSES £EU'SEEHE H3IAW3 L 435

QZL'BEEALS | 9T EESTLES QFT UG 1S isnony

CLE'TROELE | BESPICELS PFLGTROES Alnr

ZrE'5OL'alE | ¢EL'OZE'5LS 15 BZHLE 3ANNT

0LE'gE'51E | E0LEETEES LTUZ0EGES Ane

BESZSE'OLE § SO OLS B2 E0ECES Heldy

BERFZSLES | ELFSLTIES 901'BES 6L HOEYR

£C680'M1S | POTOSH'ELE QES'EELLES AHYHE34

{22 e) WELL | FEAALE'EES | SLABELEIE | pELTOTELE ELILEALS AHYINYT

AIVALLES FONTHS TILY ENTTTEE] TFAEDY TILSY G3AA538

ATHINOWN 1202 % HLNOW FZOE 1Zoz GZ0T 60T HALKOW
SASHIA TWNLAY 0262
ATHLINGK SrSH3A
LEE 1202

BIEUINSD | 20T UBY) fam0] (656'8223) %27 |
|eray Q20 veds saybig {0201 07) %EL|
ach

BUINSS | Z07 Alenuer ueyl sama (656'3228) 2T L
|ERiDY 0Z0e Atenuer Uel RYBIH {020°1028) %EL'L

FEOZ AMVYANYT HONOSHL SLdIF03Y IWNLoY
SIXVLE SN ANV SZ¥S
ALMOHLAY LISNYEL TYNOIDIY N I3AI T HILYIHD



HBED

Hbi'D
YGL D
%ge0
HELD
%G4'D
%HELD
%10
%540
%) D
bl

YalE' D
%SE 0
%GL
YLESD
%&ELD
%l
Y%IET

Wik

Yehi'G
AN
%Gl G
el o
kLS
%0
S50

FEL 0

%ol T
W%OLE
%ClE
%G00

1304 ALHNLY LS3HALINI
JOVHIAY 0L SAYO OINHIOV

f

F

i B B e B M

¥

o

I O

FEE

Eig

ost
¥

FOVHIAAY

ot FIEO8T LS
as FBT2ZT LS g
o5 £82'L5% ]
Tis'eEs gg. T2 eES
% 0IF'L0LE ¥
a% 958'FoTS ¥
o IR LEES ¥
a8 9L THY RS ¥
o FOZ'BIES ¥
oS 185091618 F
Tig'ee CLl7ER0EE i JAER
085'968
0% el P ¥
g £IB'Ti% ¥
ZI6°8S EE0'rZESE
-3 LT ER &
e I 805 FS ¥
TIEES OCO'00C'EE 76
0% T Ees'Ler'ssis
0% igle o ¥
0z OEE"FS ¥
04 BR9'G51E ]
04 G94'8% ¥
0% EEL'BRO'TLES t
0% OFF'GeR'als F
0% blL'GGS ¥
FEE'ES GEL'BT6'SS
ELGES 908'6e9' 1% gcs
£8ES 2L TS 211t
2508 FOC'GLLE 5L
0% IBL'DEE'ES ¥
IVAEDNING SAYO
IFLOL (LEE

zio | sbeg

G0 40 31Y1S
HbwH ASH

Hiew'e ASH
HWYE AZH
HNYE ASH
OiHD 20 31WILS
HNYE AT
QIHO 40 31¥1S
SEYTODIN 73411

OIHO 40 31Y1S
d3AMSHNYE AT%

HNYE A3
OIHC S0 31¥15
HMN%E HOLDONILNAH

HMWE AZH
HANYE MOLONIANMH
HNYE ASH
HNYE DN
CEHO 40 3ivIS
OIRG 40 VIS
HNWE A9

HNYE NO1DMLNNH
HNYE ND19MIINGH
HNYE NOLSHILNGH
HNYE NO1OMIINAH

NOILMLLESNI

ONNd NOISNTS TYLOL
OHHO YYLES IT0EME 0Z0ENTE:
HO3 ATA 1EDZmE OZ0EMEET Opef1S NOISNIS
ONA HILYIW w307 TYLOL
HO3 ATHNISYE HOLWD g0ei DEGEAREL
EIFA-LNYHD LE0ERiT  DZOEZMAETRL
HOZ ATN-HILYIN 19307 LEDEres OC0ENETL
OIHO Y ES-HILY 19307 1202r%s OZDENERL
HUZ ATA-LOOVW £H3G B0 1EDErs 0ZDETEL
QIHO U¥iS-1070v 1930 6102 208/ 0Z0E1eel
34 HIIYIN T207 ECOTAPESL  GEDEFLET
ANNA BEILYW TwD0T
AN LINFWNISE0INT MY TYLOE
THHD YWLS LE0gfE DEOENIETL
INFHITHOSNT M LE0IFE DEDEARIZL  CNNd LNSAHIDH0ANT My
NI FONTENSN TRLCL
H33 A3 LZDEft  OTDENETL
OIHO Yvig 1202 OZDENERL
SWIHS LZoZsie SLEEER ONNd FTNYHNSNI
ANAS TYEINTD TrLOL
B33 A3% 1202 OE0ENER)
ANNODIY XYL S3vS D02 RGEMEED
ANNd ALIAEDY I3ACTINI LE0EE Q2OEAEEL
L ATNOW H20Y A8 LEDERY OZOEZERD
SIEVI0IHD gvls E02R QZOENLEEL
OO YYLS E0EMY DZOEALEEL
LMW AH-LIDY ANGYHOMIA L2028 0Z0TLET1 QWAL Tyd3INID

OINS INSASHLL IS ONOE TYLOL

WY 204 77018 ASNTSYIYHL LECTOEL  BLOEMmIS
WICH 3 Hd H0: 7118 ASNSYIEL Z002A6S 610285
WOIWIHA 204 118 AENSYIWL (20285 6L02YS
LTAHYIN ATNOK FEOEMPE DEGESIEL ONNd LNIWEHLL Y aNDB
LNINNHLSHI 3ivQa 3lvq aNnd

AdlldnLyW ISYHOUND

0ZOZ *1€ ¥3BWIHIAQ 20 SV
SINIWISIANI AHNSVYIYY. 30 AHOINIAN]
ALHOHLNY LISNYHL T¢YNOIDaY GNYI3AT 1D ¥31Y3Iyo



Y%LED
%ET'0
Satrl 0
STl
e

WEL'D

%80

Q3L ALMMMLYI ESTHIUANI
JOVHIAY QL SAYO CaAnNHIOV -

gt

£TL

¥

HEOVHIAY

Liz'o8%

zi9'ses
03
0%
7i9'058

(3

0%

BESE8E'ZFTS

BEFELIPTES
bei SRE SFS
£25/BES
Si1'LB0'6S

SES'ToE'es

GEG'zUE 't

TVdIDNIYL
T™LOL

Z 4o g afiey

¥ OIHO 40 3115 CIHD YYLS E0LME

¥ HMNYH AT Y33 AT LZDEMRIE
Zr0L SNYI00IN 134115 844 CEOLPLE

F HNYE AN Y33 AT LEQEE
SAVD NOLLMLLEESNI LNINNHLSHI EER-n]
Wu3l ALHMIYW

0Z0Z ‘4 £ ¥38W3D30 40 SV
SINFALSTANI AUNSYIHL 40 AUCINIAN
ALIHOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIOTY QNYI3AS TS HALYIHD

DE0ENEIES
QZ0EMAEEL
OZOELLIE

JE0ENEEL

3Lv¥a
ISYHIHEN

SANAL TV TV LOL
ONNd IAYISIY Twiol

Omnd 3a43534
ONAS TYLIGVD FLY TYLI0L

TN THLIdYD Wi
QN4



GT8'PEST PaNnbay anisy 198 MUILUCH

9Z5'089°GS {1202 i0; 5pisy 125) asurjeq Walny

Jusllisiney poog

SODOOPES'SLE | 00005 FE6'ELSE | DO00OSEPE' LIS OOrODS'EEO TS | OODOSEE9TS G 00 00S'6E2'23 00 DOG'NSEOnLE spuog jejal
CO'05L 8082 DOGIE TR L Do0'sse COSiE L2L QrsLe' st GOa CO'SLE LTS OFQCO'SE0'SE  8EOZ Dag AEY XE | S9eG-ELIT sTnag
0O'O0R'85, Q0I5 vRE 0000008 COCO5'FiE OO 006 'FLE Qoo GIOCEPLE o0 0onO0GGL  LE0Z Deg AAY KB S3ES-0L07 Seuag
0000 BLP'S OO 00G'PRE % J0°000'0sE'S 0O'COCFED L OO 000 PED'S GO CoOongFEns 00000098 Ly PEOT D0 ThEY HE| SBIES-GL{E SAAG
I00SF1LE Q0'SELDISE a0 000'oEL'S QOSELObE OO 52 'OVE IR DUSZL0FE 00 000'S0E'0L  SEOE oeg hEY XB| SHHESYRLLT SaUls
00°GOD'SZR'E OO 005'E95's A0 000'06E"S 00 aszaz o005 78 cog 0000 'zeE 0000000501 +20Z Dea gy Xe| S3IES-ZLOT SAUeg
1242 LEOZIEL {S0ZIERTL | FAsr AN AR FLOTIES FEOTILS LEOZILG OEGTIETL 218 spuog
Juawsinbay | Auswainbay Blgefed jenedeg fuatuaninbay Rgeied jsigediey Butpumsing Apimen
1983 1590 FHAIDS 1GET redlould ISoITYLH 2iAtST J0ag el f E=d R ledzupg jej0g jeuiq

0Z0Z "3 ¥IgWIDIT JO SV
SNLYLS ONY ITNJZH3S 301AH3S 1830
ALHOHINY LISNvHL TYHNOI9TH ANYI3AT 1D dILvSHD



YEL 0 YBED
kS F AR Y%EE T
SAES'L oL 00T
YalE' WERL %S0T
%a0F'| YaioL SaElZ
0¥ %40T %ig'C
HEFL W5l T WFZE
%S¥ L WOZT SGiBE .
%S55) WEEE %BET
%S5 WiFT %t T
%G| WEF'T %BE'T
591 WdtE YWEBET
5L ®EFE REEE
5L Rk T BT T
#0731A #1314 g7131A

0eE'9L8'EE

EF6'CITS
EFE'LSTE
ZTYa0es
£06'2ZCs
LET'LLES
¢ilL'B0ES
¥1L'782%
5050528
BE0'F0ES
SFOTELS
£O0E'B51E
tOREGLS
ECTEE]

13HHYIN  QUVONYLS HO9vHIAY  LSTHIING

GE0E

LIG'SSHERLE

FELPRO'CSES
9497 205'5545
IBL'GIRTIRLS
281 GEE FELS
HSr'Z59'E5LE
BeP'EiLO5ES
LLEPEO eSS
LEZ' 8RS BGES
sl A3 4
L5LC0R'ZTES
LBT'BOLPELE
LLLBEE' 1S
IONYIVE
IDVHIAY

olan, feq £ puns Asuoy Anseal) S slenba p3 1SRN &

'S|iE Ansesd | yuow g ua) spad luajeanbe wodnoa afeiene Bumoys &

XIANE HIONN HIAOQ STT30A FOVHIAY V1IN

oLEG" b0
BESED EA ] SGED LA0'BOOES
W00 %itg BLZD o/ 68
EARNE ARy St D LAFPE
oLl %ELY SHT0 D1z'ees
8300 WEL'D WEE PIG'BTE
%100 Stk D WGFD LiL'6ES
%00 %0e'0 %l D SEl'eat
Ll W%EGY GG SHAB0ES
WEDD S L2 %ISR0 GOLPETS
%EDC SLir L Bl L 098 'FOES
0L AT WEP L TFSkbE
WEIT %ES' ) ®eEl EED'LLLE
LG Sea PG L96°S08S

FYSRETN EXEETTN WEETTN e[ E]

L3XHYI  QMVONVLS 3DVHEAY  LSIWIUINI

0Z0e

0202 "Lt WIBWIDIC HSNOYHL 31¥0 OL Hv3A
JONVYINHOJHId ANFWLSIANI 40 ASYIWNNS

ALROHLINY LISNYHL TYNOIDIY QNY13ATTO HI1VIHD

bR PR

LER'GR9'0FES
ERZ'ZEL'GEEE
GEE'B9L A0ZS
000 FOF 9528
FER'GEE'ZETE
PN i
Pt YES'EITS
ooo'age'rels
DOC'OTL'05ES
DOO'SZLESES
DOS'9ZE LrEs
OG0'SZO'ESLS
ER R
IOVHIAY

ALYa OF U¥3A

Y3aw=33a

HISWIAON

H#380100

H3gW3Ld3s

LSNonY

ATHr

FNAr

AW

gy

HIYUWI

AETTHESS

AT
HLINOW



656668
B 2ivd
508
Yo 3
LEO%

o L0 01
¥ iG8'g4L8
L0°OPSE
I00F5E

SY5Z¥'6i8%
26062 €BO%
ZR1EGGLS

TSRS
£09le'z1s
g92'5e
ES15%
GB'EBL'ES
{ELE

LE 2P 05es

PLIZEESLS
LEELLE
PLLLTS

£ 1o | sfiey

Flwd Gl HY3A BE0E
3w GL HY3 A 9202

0202 H38W3330

3190 CL YUv¥3A 6102
3i¥0 OL Hv3Ak 0202
0Z0Z H3BW353d

Ji¥0 OL W93k 60T
3i¥0 OL WY 0208
0232 383530

3i¥0 OL Wv3A 8102
31V0 G Y93 0208
0202 1383033

QIHCYY LS
INOOD Y 43308 HNYE AT
QNN INGREOH0IMT MY T

QIHOHY LS
aNNd FONYVHNSHI

INNQJTY dI3MS MNVE ATH-LNNODODY INYHIHEIW
INYHD SIHUYI-CIHC WYLS

ANNODIY AQCLSND INd

LNNCIIY d33MS HNYE AT

CIHOHYLS

LNNGIOV ¥ 1 STI¥S-NOLDMILNAH

aNN:d TydaNTS

LN ASNCIN NOLDONIANOH
ONNd LNIWIHII3H N8

0¢0Z ¥38N353a
(SIS¥E HSYJ) SONINNYI LNIWLSIANI NO LHOJTY
ALIBOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDIY ANYTIATTD HALYIHD



vLEPE VES

89 1¥F'6S1S

LEBES
LETBES

91°5%63
56 F51S
9g°LE
gy L%

AT AR Y
gLge5'cls
PBELS
FrOs
O0BELS

210598168

OF'S0¥'595%
v 06.'23
IB81%°
ETLBLES
Fig g sTA

g

310 OL HU¥3A BLOE
J1¥0 QL "U¥3A GEde
Q£02 ¥3aw3azad

1Y DL HY3IAGLEE
J1vd 04 Hy3A 0202
Q202 1383230

313 01 Yy3AABLEE
J1vd OL HY3A 0202
$Z02 U383 30

J1w3d Ol Hv3ABLEE
J1%d Ol U3 A 0L
0202 ¥381N303d

30 7 abey

0Z0¢ ¥3aw3z3a

LHNNGCIOV dIZMS HNYE ATH
GNNE IY1idYD V1Y

LIAETIN ATHNON HNYE ATH
ANNDD IV ALIAILDY 330 TdNE

INNODIV 433IMSE HMNYE ASH
QIHOHYLS
QNMd NOiSH3d

ANNODY 433/ HkvE A3
18930 8L0E-OIHOWYLS
CHHOHY LS

aNNd HOLYW 1Y o000

{S1SVE HSVYD) SONINYYI INJWLSIANI NO LHOLSY
ALIMOHLAY LISNYHL T¥YNOIDIY ONYIIAITD ¥3iV3HD



£ 0 ¢ abegy

%880 %.Z 0 'SINIWLSIANE NO G131A JDVHIAY
Z¥L'98L ' vELS LEY'SEE OrE (LSOD) IoNYIVE LNIWLSIANI IOVHIAY
LL0'800'ES {gre'se) GINHYS JWODNE LSTIHILNI
LiT'ees LEE'ogs DNIONT
{£ZZ'cses) {99r'al L§) DNINNIDZE
JASTHILNI AINHODW
0B0'SRE 2% D¥6'EZE (SIS¥8 HSYD) a3AIAD3H LSIHIUNI
3ivQ o4 d3gw3oaa
Hv3 A 6202
89112695 31¥0d OL #¥3IA 602
Ly'080S8Z'Te 31¥d OL #vHA 0Z0Z
60°0b8°ZZS 0Z0Z ¥3d3n3a SANNS T IvLOL
L¥OLL'BLLS 31T OL HVEA 5107
TL0ZYEESS J1¥Q OL WVIA 020T
IYE08ES 0E0Z H3gW3030
BECO% LNNGS3OY 433848 MNYE AT
80'68L'cS CIHOHVYLS
GNNd IAHISTH
020Z ¥3aW3D3a

(SISYE HSVD) SONINYYI LNIWLISIANI NC LNOd3H
ALMOHLINY LISNYYL I¥NOIOTY ANYIIATTD HILYIND



ALBHNEYIN
FOVHIAY

HBiTg
%0g|
%S0
%5T 0
%540
%200
=7
FOVHIAY

e H
%89G
SAt0'9

Y1898
%400
YBE 'L

W10t

40 1NIDHdd

L8R LTRSS
0OO'0%9'E LS
SEL0BS'YLS

FZ'SrE 0LES

195'801%
o01'58Lcs
INNCNY

el

L58°€20°ZYTS
05¥'PLBCIS
G5 069 F1S

FOE'SYE'0LES

199'89L8
901°58L'eS

TYdIINI-EA

0Z0¢ ‘L€ Y3AW3D3Q S¥

OFN04Ld0d INIWLSIANI 40 NOILISOdIWOD

GHOJS0 d JUSLESAALY (B3O
SBLUNIES WBLILLBADS "2
UNO0oy ey ppass sbuiweg
SUQ JEIS

lunoooy doamg yueg Aoy
UNGIoY 18y AsUopn
BWINsU|



“UOHBUNo] [BUBTIpRe )
0B-0Z0E "08 UOIING0S3Y $I3ISML) 10 PIROE PUB HEG 2anpadsg Ballelsiiiupy {Al0d el b AWougny usue)) [eooday pu2eal] J8188.0 3Us Jo suofieedag DLe se|ny papon Bu3 30 958 Jardey ) o] /sl aseay

TTGE L2 Y= PAI2p ARutiy Jarg 'Y 01 UCIHGE ALOSIAPY §2I5UOISSIL LGS SHNT HUG
BT TLE SBFURY BOMIEG UOISSIMUCT SHYIT CIYD
DZ0E *0 ARy patep [s:1eyy (BB - W) PH0UE Burd 1Asys 03 U0:Us0g AIosiaoy JETS UGISSILRLCT 31433 GIUG
TrE 0401 SO0 Jageenyy UorudD) {ELULIGGU | UDISSILHUGT SHYIT DG
{3) pue (GIE0°TOT SU0Ras IPO] pasinay st
WL EosEdied 4 3G 0) SlEnplupl s|gen|dde ry papia0ad nag S eEW DU SiEL

10N

Adpa 2Ny iU Eldel MR

. Jedisiday puocg U814 ) MAN |0 UEY
SHIFLUISIAU - QY0 U LS
183 EMIBPLEN

URCIX HE] SBES pue IRLWSIESY pucyg ¥UEQ UalFununy

JERO0TIY MosIs] PEYL Y3geo

P4BZ HGAD pue JINoaDy (eIpnse Jueq Jiid

) 53918 Buspueg WEW kUeg Aay

diysuo{3elal jO 3aniey VOIS jelausU L fyueg

0ZOT '1E Joquisiag jo sy
sdiysuoneRy [2Pueud pue Supjueg
Auoyinyg Jsueif |2Ug|Sey pueEAl)) SaIBRID



